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74 DESCRIPTION
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X-GooD —RUINS ¥—ALTERED —MOVED DATE
—FAIR —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Plaistow Carhouse (Trolley Barn) is a multi-bayed, essentially rectangular

brick structure of which the primary mass (the carhouse itself) is approximately

50' wide and 150' long, A wing to the east of the carhouse, designed for use as

gglofflg?/waiting room, .is also of brick construction and measures approximately
X .

The carhouse section of the structure is one story high and flat-roofed, with a
monitor roof running its entire length, Its gable front facade contains two
overhead doors and ijmprovised in-fill of brick and wood (the four original paired
doors have been removed). A broad-lintel spans:the entry, above which:is an:in-
-scription stone. - The roof Tine is marked by a corbeled:cornice rising to-a -coidrse
of rusticated, *rough-faced-granite coping. -The carhausé facade:is-topped by a :-
parapet gable, from which several courses of brick, the corbeled cornice and the
granite coping have been removed. The windows of the monitor roof are now board-
ed up, but intact.

The southwest elevation of the carhouse contains ten recessed bays separated from
each other by piers. Each bay contains two tall windows with six-over-six sash,
rough granite sills and radiating voussoirs. Above each pair of windows is a hor-
izontal 1ine of four-course corbeling that extends from the recessed wall outward
to the plane of the side wall proper. The rear elevation contains three bays

with six windows identical to those of the southwest elevation. These windows

are now filled in with concrete blocks.

The 2-story, 5-bay office/waiting room wing to the:east of the carhouse displays

a facade containing two 4-panelled doors (the upper panels of glass), ‘which are
topped by radiating voussoirs.. The doors are offset in the gable wall and be-
tween them are three windows with two-over-two sash, also with radiating voussoirs.
The second-story windows have splayed brick lintels. A1l of the windows in the.
facade have projecting rough granite sills. The 2-bay northeast elevation of the
office/waiting room wing contains windows with identical treatment. "The roof line
of this wing is marked by a corbeled cornice and granite coping identical to that
of the canrhouse proper. '

A 1-story, 3 x 2 bay transformer room is attached to the rear of the office/wait-
ing room wing. Its northeast elevation contains three bays. Two tall windows
topped by radiating voussoirs occupy the north bay, the central bay has been filled
in with brick, and the south bay has been altered to accommodate a new door. (A
portion of the original transom 1ight and the radiating voussoir, however, are
still visible.) A corbel-capped chimney rises from the outside wall of the rear
elevation.

A wooden shed projects from the east corner of the carhouse. The building is
set back from the road and is surrounded by flat open land.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The significance of +he P]a1sbow Carhouse (Tro]]ey Barn) is both -historical.and
architectural.. It-stands today-as a symbol of a relatively short-Tived interurban
transit systen that existed only from the very late: nincteenth centur/ througﬁ the
first few decades of the twentieth century, . . :

Designed by the Shaeff & Jaastad Company of New York and built in 1901, its history
spans the era of the trolley car. The Haverhill-Plaistow service was discontinued
in 1930 and the next year the rails were removed and the carhouse was sold at a-
public auction. It was used for the storage of carnival equipment by the Lagasse
Amusement Company until its purchase by the Town of Plaistow in 1979,

Architecturally, the building exemplifies a type of late nineteenth and early twenti-
ieth century industrial design that provided a utilitarian facility without sacri-
ficing a concern for aesthetics in its decorative detail. This concern is partic-
ularly reflected in the use of various masonry'design elements such as a prominent
parapet gable with inscription.stone.on. its main facade, a long row of recessed bays
with corbelling detail on its side wall, and segmentally arched windows displaying
both splayed lintels and radiating voussoirs.

The building basically retains its integrity and is Tittle changed from its original
appearance except for temporary work and alterations to its facade, including the
replacement of the original trolley doors. S

The Town of Plaistow is now (1980) considering the possibility of adapting the
building for re-use as a headquarters for its police and fire departments.

- —
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The Plaistow carhouse was constructed in 1901 for the Haverhill, Plaistow & Newton Street
Railway, one of three companies comprising a through trolley line between Haverhill and
Amesbury, Mass. via Plaistow, Newton and a corner os Fouth Hampton N.H. Regular operation
over this line commenced on May 8, 1902 and one week later the operation of through
trolleys between Haverhill and Hampton Beach, N.H. via Plaistow, Newton, South Hampton,
Amesbury, Salisbury, South Seabrook and Seabrook Beach began

Constituent companies of this through 1ine included the Haverhill & Plaistow and the
Amesbury & Hampton Street Railways, both Massachusetts corporations, and the Haverhill,
Plaistow & Newton and the Seabrook & Hampton Beach Street Railways, both incorporated
in New Hampshire. A1l four of these companies were consolidated with the Massachusetts
Northeastern Street Railway on April 1, 1912,

Through trolley service between Haverhill and Hampton Beach ran during the late spring,
summer and early fall only, cars at other times of the year running between Haverhill

and Amesbury or between Haverhill and Smithtown Square, Seabrook. Additional service

was provided between Haverhill and the Plaistow carhouse throughout the year to accomodate
Plaistow residents employed in Haverhill,

The greater part of the former Seabrook & Hampton Beach Street Railway-- from Smithtown
Square to Seabrook Beach-- was abandoned in 1920 and three years later trolley service
was discontinued between Rowe's Corner, Newton, and Smithtown Square via Amesbury.
Then, in February 1928, the trackage between Rowe's Corner, Newton, and Dow's Corner,
Plaistow, was abandoned and on Sept. 2, 1930 the last trolleys ran between Haverhill
and Plaistow, motor buses taking over the following day.

For economy's sake, the Plaistow carhouse was closed as an operating center on June

25, 1927 and cars assigned to the Haverhill-Newton run were operated from the Merrimac
carhouse of the Massachusetts Northeastern Street Railway. This arrangement did not
prove satisfactory and the Plaistow facility soon was reopened and served until the end
of trolley service between Haverhill and Plaistow. The building was sold late in 1931
to Leonard Wing of Haverhill for $2,000 plus 1931 taxes on the building.

One significant historical feature of the Plaistow carhouse is that it is one of the
relatively few trolley car barns in New England designed by the New York engineering
firm of Sheaff & Jaastad, others being located in Salem, Pelham, Hampton and Rochester,
N.H. and Portland, Me. Of those in New Hampshire, all but those in Pelham and Hampton
are still standing, the Plaistow carhouse being 1little changed from its progoma; a!lear-
ance except for temporary work at the front of the building, replacing the doors used
during the trolley era.



